
Ashford Board of Education 
Ashford, Connecticut 

Meeting Agenda 
May 3, 2018 

7:00 pm 
Ashford School 

District Office Conference Room 14 
1. Call To Order 
2. Communications 
3. Opportunity for Public Comment 
4. Approval of Minutes: 04/05/2018 
5. Superintendent’s Report 
    a.  Authorization of FY18 Budget Transfers 
    b.  Friar & Associates Master Plan Update 
    c.  Discuss June BOE Meeting Calendar 
6. New Business 
    a.  Staff Resignation 
    b.  Staff Appointment 
    c.  Authorization of FY19 Individuals w/Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) Grant Application 
    d.  Decommission of School Bus from Fleet Service 
    e.  2018-2019 Healthy Foods Certification 
7. Old Business 
    a. MEUI Negotiations Update 
 8. Next Meeting Date/Agenda Items 
 9. Second Opportunity for Public Comment 
10. Superintendent Evaluation (Executive Session Anticipated) 
11. Adjournment 
 

Ashford Board of Education Goals 
 The Ashford Board shall: 
1. Initiate policies and practices, as well as devote appropriate resources towards the improvement of            Ashford 
students on Connecticut standardized testing. 
2. Promote instructional practices rooted in the individual skills, talents, needs and performance of the student. 
3. Initiate mechanisms for improved and effective communication with the community as well as town leaders and 
other town boards and committees. 
4. Develop a three-year school improvement plan that presents, and explains, an optimal path towards educational 
excellence in Ashford. 
 
All meetings, conferences, programs and activities at Ashford School are available, without discrimination, to 
individuals with disabilities as defined by the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and/or Title II of the American with 
Disabilities Act. Individuals with disabilities requesting relocation of this meeting should call the Superintendent at 
429-1927 or e-mail a request to jplongo@ashfordct.org not later than 2 working days prior to the meeting. Hearing 
impaired individuals may communicate their request for accommodations by using the e-mail address above, or calling 
the State of CT TDD relay service (800) 842-2880 or the national relay service number (800) 855-2880. 
 
Enclosures: Minutes 04/05; Supt. Report	
  



 Ashford Board of Education 
Regular Meeting Minutes – April 5, 2018 

7:00 p.m. 
District Office Conference Room  

 
Note: Per C.G.S. §10 – 218, Board of Education meeting minutes are provided in a draft format within 48 hours of the date the 
meeting was held.  With the exception of motions and votes recorded, these minutes are unofficial until they have been read and 
approved by a majority vote of the Board.  Should edits be necessary, they will be made at a regularly scheduled meeting, noted 
in the meeting minutes, and so voted upon. 
Call To Order  
Board Chair J. Lippert called the meeting to order at 7:05 pm. Present were members S. Gamache, J. 
Urban, L. Donegan, K. Warren, J. Calarese and M. Matthews (7:08pm).  Also present were 
Superintendent Dr. J. Longo, Business Manager L. Dyer, Principal T. Hopkins and recording secretary J. 
Barsaleau. Audience present:  R. Haeger and AEA co-president J. Horn.  
Motion made by J. Lippert to add two items to the agenda New Business, 7a. Certified Staff 
Appointment, and 7b. Discussion of Paraprofessional Staffing. Motion seconded by K. Warren and 
carried unanimously.    
Communications 
A letter was received from EASTCONN offering a seat on the board of director’s for a member of the 
Ashford BOE.  J. Calarese read an email communication that he wrote to members of the CT Association 
of Schools (CAS) visiting committee thanking them for their time and consideration of Troy Hopkins 
candidacy as “Principal of the Year”.  The Class of 2018 requested the BOE consider placing an 
advertisement in the yearbook. 
Motion made by L. Donegan to place an advertisement in the Class of 2018 Yearbook, motion 
seconded by K. Warren and carried unanimously. 
Opportunity for Public Comment 
R. Haeger congratulated Mr. Hopkins on his nomination for Principal of the Year.  She had some 
questions about the CORR space renovations and if there was enough money in the unexpended funds 
account to cover the cost of the project, and how does that fund work?  Dr. Longo responded to her 
questions and reviewed the completed phases of this project and what remains to be done.  He then 
explained that some unexpended funds remain at the end of the fiscal year to cover unanticipated 
expenses that may come late in the year.  Funds confirmed as unexpended following audit move to the 
BOE unexpended funds account. To utilize the funds, a formal request must be made to the BOF and the 
funds can only be used toward items listed on the BOE’s five-year capital plan.   
Approval of Minutes: 02/15/2018; 03/29/2018 
Motion by K. Warren to approve the regular meeting minutes of 02/15/2018, with an amendment to the 
7th sentence under “Communications.”  The word “Town” should be stricken and replaced with 
“capital improvements committee.” Motion seconded by J. Urban and carried with one abstention  
(J. Calarese). 
Motion made by J. Calarese to approve the special meeting minutes of 03/29/2018. Motion seconded by 
S. Gamache and carried with three abstentions (K. Warren, L. Donegan, M. Matthews) 
District Reports (Superintendent, Business Manager, Director of Pupil Personnel) 
Superintendent 
Dr. Longo reported he met with the co-presidents of the AEA, a teacher and our state CT Education 
Association representative to discuss the Voluntary Early Retirement Incentive Plan discussed at the last 
meeting. The union made a counter proposal to the VERIP, increasing the incentive from $12,000 to 
$15,000 and extending the deadline date by 3 days to 4/12/18.  Dr. Longo recommends the Board act to 
approve these changes. 
Motion made by L. Donegan to increase the early retirement incentive to $15,000 as recommended and 
to extend the deadline date to 4/12/18.  Motion seconded by J. Calarese and carried unanimously. 
Dr. Longo reviewed the first draft of the Friar & Associates capital improvement plan (CIP) documents. 
Discussion followed concerning the committee that was to be formed to solicit architects. M. Matthews 
said she would follow up with Mr. Zambo. 
The recent custodial vacancy was posted internally as required by contract. Jason Link who is currently 
the 20-hour custodian expressed interest in the vacancy.  Dr. Longo recommends appointment of this 
candidate. 
Motion made by J. Calarese to appoint Jason Link to the 32-hour custodial vacancy.  Motion seconded 
by L. Donegan and carried unanimously. 
 
 



 
Ashford Board of Education – Page 2 of 3 
Regular Meeting Minutes – April 5, 2018 

 
The 20-hour vacancy created by this appointment will be posted internally. MEUI negotiations will begin 
4/26/18.  Dr. Longo would like to create a small committee to create a bridge between Ashford School 
and Ashford’s senior citizens.  Ideas were discussed, such as the seniors having lunch here, reading to our 
students, students personally inviting the seniors to events and transporting students to the senior center.  
Dr. Longo feels we have been remiss in not connecting with this important group of citizens.  Ms. 
Gamache will represent the board on the committee. Dr. Longo and Mr. Hopkins will reach to the director 
of the senior center to discuss this further. 
Business Manager 
Mrs. Dyer distributed the year to date expenditure report dated 4/5/2018 and a list of requested budget 
transfers dated 4/5/2018. Year-end projections will be provided for the next meeting.  Currently, there is a 
balance remaining of $81,869.81, however, building and fleet maintenance encumbrances have not yet 
been applied.  Transfers were reviewed.  
Motion made by J. Urban to approve quarterly budget transfers of $80,001, as presented. Motion 
seconded by K. Warren and carried unanimously. 
Mrs. Dyer reported there is a shortfall of approximately $105,000 in outplacement tuition.  Following the 
approval of the BOE’s FY18 budget, it was necessary to outsource two students.  As has been past 
practice, the BOF requests they be notified of such situations.  Some of the costs associated with these 
outplacements have been absorbed into the budget wherever possible.  
Motion made by J. Calarese to provide written notification to the Board of Finance concerning a 
budget shortfall in special education outplacement tuition.  Motion seconded by K. Warren and carried 
unanimously. 
Brief discussion followed concerning the BOE’s budget process timeline.  This will be discussed at the 
annual BOE retreat.  
Director of Pupil Personnel 
No report 
Administrative Reports (Principal, Asst. Principal) 
Principal 
Mr. Hopkins expressed his appreciation to everyone who participated in the Principal of the Year visit 
this past week; he was overwhelmed by everyone’s support.  Ashford School has received notification 
that teacher Kellie Gauvin was chosen to receive a grant by “Fund for Teachers.”  Mrs. Gauvin will be 
traveling to Italy this summer. Ashford teachers Katie Knecht and Kate Craven have been named as 
recipients of National Geographic Fellowships.  Mrs. Knecht will be traveling to the Galapagos Islands 
and Mrs. Craven will spend 24 days in Antarctica.  There are only 40 fellows named annually and it is 
incredible honor for Ashford to have received two awards of this magnitude. 
Assistant Principal 
Mr. Dukette’s report was distributed and discussed.  
New Business  
a.  Certified Staff Appointment 
Dr. Longo recommended the appointment of Alicia Spakowski to the position of School Psychologist, 
effective at the commencement of the 2018-2019 school year. 
Motion made by L. Donegan to appoint Alicia Spakowski to the position of School Psychologist 
effective at the start of 2018-2019 school year.  Motion seconded by J. Urban and carried unanimously.   
b.  Discussion of Paraprofessional Staffing 
A question about the number of paraprofessionals was raised at the 4/4 public budget hearing.  The board 
requested and received a current list of paraprofessionals and their assignments.   
Old Business 
a.  Friar & Associates Master Plan Update 
Item was discussed during the Superintendent’s report.  
b. Second Reading of Policies (Series 4000: Abuse or Neglect of Disabled Adults; Series 4000: Child Abuse,     
Neglect and Sexual Assault Reporting; Series 4000: Employment Checks) 
The chair called for discussion, there being none, a vote was called. 
Motion   by L. Donegan to approved the Series 4000 policies prepared by counsel. Motion seconded by 
M. Matthews and carried unanimously.  
 
 
 
 
 



Ashford Board of Education – Page 3 of 3 
Regular Meeting Minutes – April 5, 2018 

 
Next Meeting Date/Agenda Items 
Motion made by J. Urban to cancel the scheduled regular meeting of April 19th. Motion seconded by 
M. Matthews and carried unanimously. 
The town meeting date is scheduled for 4/18/18 at 7:30 pm.  The next regular meeting of the BOE is 
5/3/18. Agenda items: Committee break out sessions, staff appointment, healthy foods certification, Friar 
& Associates update, follow up on request made to the BOF for special education expenditures, first 
reading of policies. 
Second Opportunity for Public Comment 
None 
Superintendent Evaluation (Executive Session Anticipated) 
Tabled by mutual consent. 
Motion to adjourn the meeting (9:25 pm) made by M. Matthews, seconded by S. Gamache and carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
Recorded by:   
 
 
 
Jennifer Barsaleau, Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
  
  
   
 
 
   
 
  
 



 
Ashford Board of Education Meeting  

May 3, 2018 
Superintendent’s Report 

 
Some Things To Think About…. 

• Dates for the BOE Summer Retreat 
• Goals, Mission, Vision 
• Capital Projects Priorities 
• Meetings with Other Boards 

Ø Three-Board Meeting 
• Budget timelines for 2019-2020 Budget Development 
• Seniors and School Partnership - Teaming up with Ashford Seniors 

 
2017-2018 Budget –Current Status 
As a result of two student outplacements that occurred after the budget was formulated, we have been facing 
a shortfall in our special education budget.  As is required by our procedures, I notified the BOE and then the 
Board of Finance of the potential for a special education budget shortfall. We discussed various ways to deal 
with the shortfall at a Board of Finance meeting.  It was decided to wait until late May to see what the excess 
cost reimbursement, if any, from the state turns out to be, and to look to our budget to find funds that could 
be redirected to help offset the shortfall. I also indicted that there were some restrictions on how we could tap 
into regular education funds, but that I would seek clarification on that matter. We should, and will have a 
legal opinion for future reference, as well as for the BOF. Since I became aware of the possibility of a special 
education budget deficit, I have frozen discretionary spending and asked Lisa to find underspent lines to 
transfer and cover the anticipated shortfall.  At this point she has completed the special education budget 
review and has a list of transfers for this BOE meeting. After taking all reasonable actions, such as covering 
some expenses with grants, freezing our budget, and postponing some purchases until next year, it appears at 
this time, barring any further unforeseen issues, we will be able to cover the matter internally and not require 
any supplementary funding from the town.  We will have a better understanding of our status by the 
beginning of June when the state money has arrived and the results of our budgetary actions are all evident.  
 
Principal of the Year Recognition 
The fact that Troy Hopkins is Connecticut’s Principal of the Year is significant and should be recognized 
formally before the end of the school year. I do not yet know what the awarding organization has planned or 
when their ceremony will be, but I will inform you once I find out. I have heard several very good ideas for 
our local recognition ceremony and I am open to ideas from the BOE.  
 
Regional World Language Teacher of the Year 
We also have the honor of having our Spanish teacher, Rebecca Aubrey, named the Northeast Conference on 
the Teaching of Foreign Language Teacher of the Year.  She is one of five national recipients, and is now 
being considered for the National Foreign Language Teacher of the Year award. We might want to consider 
combining our two recipient ceremonies and recognize them together as both are significant awards.  
 
Energy Savings 
One of the most significant ways we use power is in school lighting. We are embarking on a project to 
replace current light bulbs with LED Bulbs. We will do this as budget allows. 
 
Long-Range Planning Committee Meeting in June 
We need to meet to develop our new Capital Projects Priority List order utilizing the Friar & Associates 
report and BOE concerns.  





















	
  
	
  
	
  
As	
  has	
  been	
  the	
  Board	
  of	
  Education’s	
  practice,	
  upon	
  receipt	
  of	
  a	
  new	
  school	
  bus	
  that	
  
is	
  anticipated	
  in	
  the	
  late	
  summer	
  or	
  fall	
  of	
  2018,	
  a	
  current	
  fleet	
  vehicle	
  will	
  be	
  
removed	
  from	
  service	
  at	
  the	
  end	
  of	
  this	
  school	
  year.	
  
	
  
The	
  fleet	
  mechanic,	
  Seth	
  Lyman,	
  and	
  the	
  transportation	
  coordinator,	
  Joan	
  Celotti,	
  
have	
  discussed	
  the	
  condition	
  of	
  full	
  sized	
  buses	
  that	
  are	
  in	
  service	
  at	
  this	
  time,	
  and	
  
have	
  determined	
  that	
  Bus	
  #5,	
  a	
  spare,	
  will	
  be	
  removed	
  from	
  service.	
  
	
  
The	
  board	
  needs	
  to	
  make	
  a	
  motion	
  to	
  decommission	
  that	
  vehicle	
  from	
  active	
  service	
  
as	
  of	
  July	
  1,	
  2018.	
  






	Regular Meeting Agenda 05 03 2018
	Regular BOE Minutes 04 05 2018 Unapproved
	5-3-18 Superintendent's Report
	Proposed Tx to Offset SpEd Budget Shortfall
	Retirement Letter S Cunningham 2018
	Miguel Parrilla appointment 03 26 2018
	IDEA Grant App and 611 Goals
	IDEA 619 Goals
	Decommission of Bus 5
	2018 Healthy Foods Certification

